
 
 

 
 

Invitation to Bid – Land Application of Sludge Q&A 
Bid Opening: May 1, 2024, 1:00pm 

 
 
1. Is the total amount to be land applied 250 dry tons annually or for each event? 

 
NMWRD typically does two hauls a year for a total of 250 dry tons combined. 

 
 
2. When submitting a price for the extension years (years 2 & 3) – On the bid sheet, can 

we submit / state “current price plus annual CPI” for years 2 & 3? 
 

No, bidders must submit actual prices.  If you are not comfortable with providing a 
price for Year 2 and Year 3, you don’t have to. 

 
 
3. Are the extensions (years 2 & 3) a Sole/Owner decision or are they by mutual 

agreement? 
 
Extensions are a Sole/Owner decision. 

 
 
4. Please confirm that the performance bond required will be an annual bond as there is 

no guarantee of year 2 and 3 extensions of the contract. 
 
Yes, it will be an annual bond. 

 
 
5. Will NMWRD be issuing a separate Contract Agreement with additional terms and 

conditions to the winning bidder? If yes, will NMWRD please distribute the form 
agreement to the bidders in advance of the submission date? 
 
Yes, a Contract Agreement will be sent to the awarded bidder. NMWRD will not be 
distributing the agreement before the bid opening date.  A past agreement is attached 
for your review. 

 
 

6. Will NMWRD include in the final Contract Agreement, a Mutual Force Majeure clause? 
 
No 

 
 

  



 
 

 
 

7. Will NMWRD include a Choice of Law and Waiver of Punitive and Consequential 
Damages Clause into the final contract agreement? 

 
No 

 
 
8. Will this contract be subject to price adjustment based on fuel surcharge adjustments 

as published by the US Dept. of Transportation – Division of Highways for the 
Geographic Region where the work is being performed? 
 
No, the contract price is not subject to any adjustments. 

 
 
9. Does NMWRD have any previous testing results for the PFAS/PFOA or other regulated 

40 CRF 503 substances within the materials? If yes, will those tests be shared with the 
bidders prior to the due date of the bids? 
 
No, NMWRD does not have testing results for PFAS/PFOA. See the USEPA Biosolids 
Annual Report provided with the Invitation to Bid. 

 
 
10. Will NMWRD agree to definitive payment terms of NET 30 upon receipt of properly 

formatted invoice from the contractor and include such language in the final contract 
document? 
 
No, but the District normally pays within 30 days at its next scheduled board meeting 
(Monthly) as long as all certified payroll and waivers are provided in accurate form. 

 
 

11. Will NMWRD elaborate on the requirements of the winning bidder to perform site 
restoration activities at the completion of the project (IE – seeding and loaming, 
excavation, tree planting etc. required to complete “site restoration”? 

 
If the contractor damages any landscaping or pavement, they will be expected to fix it. 
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